
EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
1 If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately. 
2 Follow the green signs. 
3 Use the stairs not the lifts. 
4 Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 
 
 
If you require further information, please contact: Amanda Roden 
Telephone: 01344 352253 
Email: amanda.roden@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Published: 18 March 2011 

  

 

 NOTICE OF MEETING 
Local Countryside Access Forum 
Tuesday 29 March 2011, 7.00 pm 
Function Room, Fifth Floor, Easthampstead House, Town Square, 
Bracknell 
To: Local Countryside Access Forum 
Mr Michael Abbott (Chairman) 
Mr David Bertie 
Councillor Norman Bowers 
Councillor Michael Brossard 
John Deakin 
Mr Joe Dodson 
Mr Mike Gates 
Sharon Holt 
Mr Innes McEwen 
Mr Richard Mosses 
Mr Peter Radband 
 
ALISON SANDERS 
Director of Corporate Services 
 



 

 

Local Countryside Access Forum 
Tuesday 29 March 2011, 7.00 pm 
Function Room, Fifth Floor, Easthampstead House, Town 
Square, Bracknell 
AGENDA 
 
 Page No 
1. Welcome   
2. Apologies   
3. Minutes of Last Meeting and Matters Arising  1 - 6 
4. Membership and Recruitment   
5. National and Regional LCAF Work  7 - 12 
6. Mid-Term Review of ROWIP and Definitive Map and Statement 

Review  
 

 Consultation draft to be tabled.  
 

 

7. Thames Basin Heath and SANGS   
8. Green Flag Award   
9. Parks and Countryside Leaflet Review   
10. Draft 2010 Annual LCAF Report   

 To be tabled.  
 

 

11. Site Visits   

 Please bring ideas for future walks.  
 

 

12. Accessibility   

 The Council and its partners have been working with DisabledGo, a 
national charity, to produce an online access guide covering 500 
venues across the Borough to help inform and empower people with 
disabilities.  
 

 

13. Reports from Officers   
14. Reports from Members round the table   
15. Any Other Business   
16. Public Question Time   

 (Maximum 10 Minutes)  
 

 



 

 

17. Date of Next Meeting   

 Tuesday 20 September 2011, 7pm, Function Room, 5th Floor, 
Easthampstead House, Town Square, Bracknell.  
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



LOCAL COUNTRYSIDE ACCESS FORUM 
28 SEPTEMBER 2010 
7.00  - 9.05 PM 
  

 
Present: 
Members: 
Mr Michael Abbott (Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs Diana Pidgeon OBE 
Councillor Norman Bowers 
Councillor Michael Brossard 
Mr Joe Dodson 
Mr Mike Gates 
Mr Innes McEwen 
Mr Peter Radband 
 
In attendance: 
Hugh Fitzwilliams, Rights of Way Ranger, BFC 
Graham Pockett, Parks & Countryside Development Officer 
Amanda Roden, Democratic Services Assistant 
Steve Searle, Crown Estate 
Richard Walton, Parks & Countryside Manager 
Rose Wicks, Parks & Countryside Project Officer 
 
Observers: 
Mrs D M Smith, Mid & West Berkshire LAF 
John Warren, Be Heard 
 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
Sharon Holt 
Mr Richard Mosses 
David Putt 
 

1. Welcome  
The Chairman welcomed all members to the Forum. In particular, Rose Wicks, who 
had replaced Sally Coulson as the new Parks and Countryside Project Officer. 

2. Election of Chairman  
Diana Pidgeon advised Forum Members that she would be stepping down as 
Chairman of the Forum. Diana had been involved with parks and countryside work 
since 1984 and had been Chairman of the Local Countryside Access Forum in 
Bracknell Forest for seven years. Diana thanked everyone who had contributed over 
the years. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
i. Michael Abbott be elected as Chairman of the Forum 
ii. Mike Gates be elected as Vice-Chairman of the Forum 

Agenda Item 3

1



 

3. Minutes of Last Meeting and Matters Arising  
The minutes of the meeting held on 23 March 2010 were agreed as a correct record 
subject to the following amendments: 
 
Mike Gates, Vice-Chairman, was acting as Chairman of the meeting in the 
Chairman’s absence. 
 
Minute 21, Higher Level Stewardship and Signage 
 
The final paragraph should read ‘The area of Shepherd Meadows in Hampshire was 
owned by Bracknell Forest Council’ and the reference to the meadows in Wokingham 
would be removed. 
 
Matters Arising 
 
A meeting of the Mid and West Berkshire Local Access Forum (LAF) would be held 
on 29 September 2010. Any Forum Members wishing to volunteer to attend the next 
Mid and West Berkshire LAF meeting on 19 January 2011 in Reading as an observer 
should contact Rose Wicks on rose.wicks@bracknell-forest.gov.uk or 01344 354118, 
who would then send an e-mail round with further information regarding the meeting. 

(Action: Rose Wicks/ All) 
 

A date for the next Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead LAF meeting and the 
next Hampshire Countryside Access Forum would be checked and further 
information regarding the possibility of Bracknell Forest LCAF members attending as 
observers would be circulated to Forum Members. 

(Action: Rose Wicks) 
 

An update on the Local Transport Plan 3 would be circulated to Forum Members with 
the minutes. 

(Action: Rose Wicks) 
 

There was no update at present regarding the rejuvenation of the signage at 
Shepherd Meadows. The first payment had been made and there had been three 
stages of revisions with regard to the development of interpretation signage. 

4. Thames Basin Heath and SANGs  
The Thames Basin Heath was a particularly significant area in Bracknell Forest and 
the surrounding local authorities. SANGs were suitable alternative natural green 
spaces. Strategic access management measures would be co-ordinated across 
eleven planning local authorities with regard to SPAs (Special Protection Areas) in 
relation to the impact of recreation use in areas where there was an increase in the 
population due to housing developments. 
 
Housing targets in the South East Plan were no longer applicable as the plan had 
ceased. The target of the Local Development Framework included lower figures of 
housing allocation than those in the South East Plan. Contributions would be 
reviewed based on the revised housing targets. Consequently, there was a further 
time delay in housing development. More focus would be given to support existing 
time management measures. 
 
Improvements had been made within Bracknell Forest due to six SANGs and 
developer contributions would aid in funding this. The Cut Countryside Corridor was a 
group of green spaces which included Shepherd Meadows, Garth Meadows, 

2



 

Englemere Pond, Longhill Park, Horseshoe Lake, and Ambarrow Court and Hill. 
Agreement had been secured from the National Trust for Bracknell Forest Council to 
manage the two adjoining sites of Ambarrow Court and Ambarrow Hill. 
 
Housing growth had slowed due to the recession. £80,000 had been spent on 
improving sites in Bracknell Forest and £10,000 was being used for projects in 
progress. £200,000 would be used for long term management. SANGs were 
protected under National and International Law. 

5. Playbuilder  
Playbuilder projects in Year 1 of the government initiative to improve play areas had 
been completed involving twelve sites in Bracknell Forest. Sandhurst Memorial Park 
was near to completion and Sandhurst Town Council had contributed some funding 
for this site. A ribbon cutting ceremony had been held at Ascot Recreation Ground in 
June. 
 
The first of the Year 2 sites, Locks Ride, now had a water spray park, and other 
conventional play equipment would also be installed later in the year. In July 2010, 
non-contractually committed schemes began to be cut. Contracts were individually 
considered in case of a penalty for withdrawing from contracts. The second year of 
the Playbuilder Scheme would involve a reduced package of improvements to sites 
due to funding being cut. 

6. National and Regional LCAF Work  
LAF views had been sought from Duncan Graham, Chairman of the England Access 
Forum, and Rob Cooke, Director of Environment Advice and Analysis, on Natural 
England and the England Access Forum’s future working arrangements. Feedback 
had been requested by 30 September 2010.  
 
Forum members queried whether Natural England should have a statutory remit to 
consult with Government and non-governmental bodies. Natural England’s 
government funding originated from DEFRA which was currently in the process of 
revising its status after the new coalition government was elected. LAF’s would likely 
not be directly affected by this. 
 
Feedback would be gathered at a national and regional level. Forum members 
queried whether government funding was essential to the running of the England 
Access Forum (EAF). 
 
Forum members decided that the two points they would like to feedback on were 
logical structure from local through regional to national representation and secure 
funding. Draft wording for the feedback would be circulated to Forum Members for 
agreement and then forwarded to Natural England by 30 September 2010. 

(Action: Graham Pockett) 

7. Mid Term Review of Improvement Plan (Definitive Map Review)  
A review would be undertaken of the Rights of Way Improvement Plan (ROWIP) 
2006, now midway through the plan, to review performance against actions and 
targets. There would be further information on this at the next meeting of the 
Bracknell Forest LCAF. 
 
Work on the new definitive map was in progress. The original plan had been 
produced by BABTIE but for the first time the new definitive map would be produced 

3



 

internally by the Parks and Countryside and GIS mapping teams. The aim was to 
complete work on the map by the end of the year. Work would depend on the 
highway authority approach. Bracknell Forest was a small unitary authority with a 
small management network.  
 
A ROWIP issues and actions paper would be circulated to Forum Members in 
advance of the next meeting for members to comment on. 

(Action: Richard Walton/ Graham Pockett) 

8. Green Flag  
Three Parks and Countryside sites in Bracknell Forest had been awarded the Green 
Flag again in 2010: Lily Hill Park, a joint entry from Shepherd Meadows and 
Sandhurst Memorial Park (Bracknell Forest Council in partnership with Sandhurst 
Town Council), and Pope’s Meadow. Carnation Hall, owned and managed by 
Winkfield Parish Council was also awarded a Green Flag. 
 
To be eligible for Green Flag Awards, local authorities needed to make improvements 
and respond to detailed feedback from Keep Britain Tidy. Senior Parks Officers 
decided which areas received Green Flag Awards but they could not judge their own 
area. 
 
The criteria for a Green Flag included maintaining standards, signage, safety, how 
welcoming an area was, community engagement, and environmental sustainability 
amongst others. There was a need to demonstrate that the standard could be 
delivered.  
 
Lily Hill Park and South Hill Park had both received funding for improvements and 
South Hill Park would be entered into the Green Flag process in 2012. 

9. LCAF Leaflet Review  
Parks and Countryside leaflets were being reviewed. There would be leaflets on 
Pope’s Meadow, Sandhurst Memorial Park and Shepherd Meadows, and Lily Hill 
Park. The Lily Hill Park leaflet was in the process of being re-drafted. The colour 
theme of the leaflets would be influenced by the place or activity they were 
advertising and would be design led to provide clarity. Forum members suggested 
making the leaflets simpler and easier to read with the use of bold colour. 

10. Site Visits  
The new Chief Forrester at the Crown Estate, John Deakin, would be consulted on a 
possible date in October for a site visit to the Cranbourne Chase area of the Crown 
Estate. Suggested dates included Saturday 9 or 16 October at 11am. 

(Action: Rose Wicks) 
 

A winter circular walk would be undertaken at Horseshoe Lake on Saturday 19 
February 2011 at 11am to see migrating birds and links to the Blackwater Valley 
Corridor. 

11. Reports from Officers  
Rose Wicks reported that restoration works had been completed at Queen Anne 
Gulley to restore the footpath banks using timber locally sourced from the Crown 
Estate. Forum Members were shown before and after photographs of the gulley. 

4



 

Funding had been secured from Natural England to restore the historic site and four 
new interpretation panels had been installed.  
 
Richard Walton reported that an interpretation panel which had been missing from 
Caesar’s Camp for between two and three months had been returned by a member 
of the public who had found it in the Crown Estate. The panel was still in good 
condition and had been re-installed at the site. 
 
The remedial works at Priory Field had been completed. The site was up and running 
and had already had two to three weeks of football there. The grass was looking 
good and initial feedback of the site was good. 
 
Graham Pockett reported that there was a new hoggin path to improve links 
between Lily Hill Park and Longhill Park. Fingerposts would be erected with a bigger 
font size to make them easier to read from a greater distance. The posts would be 
made of European oak and the letters would be engraved into them.  
 
A consultation process would be undertaken on the Footpath 15 diversion which 
would run across open grassland. There were green spaces and wildlife corridors 
surrounding the site. The big open space could be a future SANG. The Footpath 
could be linked up with Footpath 18 but there were concerns over the longer route. 
The preferable route would be more scenic rather than being embedded in road. The 
consultation would be circulated later in the week and would be published in the 
newspaper. 
 
There would be a possible new footpath dedication in Sunninghill in the Royal 
Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead, involving a short length of footpath opposite 
Ascot Gate into the Great Park. The length of footpath would be back from the road 
to improve the pedestrian link for new occupiers in the area. A range of different 
options were being explored for the dedication. 

12. Reports from Members round the table  
• Michael Abbott queried whether any funds from the sale of council properties 

in the area could be used towards access schemes. It was reported that this 
money had already been used for affordable housing in the borough, amongst 
other schemes. 

• Innes McEwen reported that he had been offered HLS funding for 
educational access enhancement to the farm. Mr McEwen received over thirty 
school visits to the farm per year at present and was working with the charity 
LEAF. It was hoped to make the Jealotts Hill Bird Race an annual event. Keen 
bird watchers would spend time at the farm and report what they had seen, 
which was useful information for the farm. The neighbouring farm would 
possibly be opened one day a year with a focus on the livestock.  

• Steve Searle reported that there was an open day in July at the Crown 
Estate. Measurements were being taken at present in order to make 
improvements to disabled access. Felling and thinning had been undertaken 
in the area going up to the Fernhill roundabout on the A332; with felling on the 
east side of the road and thinning on the west side of the road. 

• Peter Radband reported that cows had been too close to the gate over the 
bridge and dog walkers had been unable to get through the gate. There was a 
need for interpretation aimed at informing walkers (particularly dog walkers) 
about how to behave at sites where there were cattle grazing. It was reported 
that a first draft of an information sheet had been produced, which could be 
adopted at other sites. 

5



 

13. Public Question Time  
Mrs D M Smith, an observer from Mid and West Berkshire LAF, commented on the 
South East Region Forum where people did not know about the LAF. An event was 
held in West Berkshire where Parish and Town Councillors were invited. The event 
had proved to be very successful.  
 
John Warren, an observer at the meeting, reported that the designation of the dry 
valleys site south of The Lookout was on hold. Mountain bikes were welcome in this 
area as people could then see the geology of the area. 
 
Mr Warren commented that Be Heard had requested to be consulted on Shepherd 
Meadows’ new interpretation panel. Bracknell Forest Council’s Parks and 
Countryside service had incorporated feedback from David Putt of Be Heard 
regarding the accessibility of the new interpretation. Be Heard would welcome the 
opportunity to provide their consultation feedback on drafts of new interpretation 
signs. The dark background of the Caesar’s Camp sign with the Dartford Warbler on 
made it difficult to see the bird. Mr Warren suggested that the colour scheme for any 
leaflets could take into account any colour blind people reading them. 
 
Mr Warren also suggested that Be Heard be involved in public rights of way issues. 
Be Heard would be included in the e-mail circulation regarding the ROWIP issues 
and actions. 

(Action: Rose Wicks) 
 

Mr Warren commented that the military training area near to Swinley Forest would be 
fenced by February 2011 as Surrey Wildlife Trust would introduce banded galloway 
camps. Access points used by the public would be gated. There was another area in 
the process of becoming a designated site in Finchampstead in Wokingham. A route 
for a site visit would be considered. 

(Action: Rose Wicks/ Hugh Fitzwilliams) 

14. Date of Next Meeting  
Tuesday 29 March 2011, 7pm, Function Room, 5th Floor, Easthampstead House, 
Town Square, Bracknell. 
 

 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 

6



 

 
The British Horse Society is an Appointed Representative of South Essex Insurance Brokers Limited 

 who are authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority. 
 

Registered Charity Nos. 210504 and SC038516.  A  company limited by guarantee. Registered in England & Wales No. 444742  

 

 
 

 
To all English Local Access Forums        04 February 2011 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
Re: Equestrian Access 
 
The British Horse Society works for safer on- and off-road riding and carriage driving through an 
improved public rights of way network, seeking to create new opportunities of lawful off road 
riding and carriage driving, and by safer use of our highways by all users. 
 
The UK equestrian industry is currently valued at £7 billion per annum, 4.3 million people 
regularly engage in horse based leisure and sport, 80% of whom are female, and 53% come 
from CDE demographics. Horses are an integral part of British culture and society. The BHS is 
the largest equestrian charity in the UK and represents the interests of the everyday rider and 
driver. It has a world-wide reputation for its activities in welfare, education and training and on 
access issues.   
 
The Strategy for the Horse Industry in England and Wales, published in December 2005, was 
prepared by the British Horse Industry Confederation (including the BHS) in partnership with the 
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs, the Department for Culture, Media and 
Sport and the Welsh Assembly Government. 
 
The Strategy includes the following aims:- 
 
Aim 2 ‘Increase participation in equestrianism and develop the social contribution of the Horse 
Industry.’ 
Aim 3 ‘Boost the economic performance of equestrian businesses.’ 
Aim 5 ‘Increase access to off-road riding and carriage driving’, including the encouragement and 
improvement of urban and suburban riding and carriage driving. 
 
In England the length of the public right of way network currently amounts to 188,700km, of 
which ONLY 22% is available to horse riders and horse-drawn vehicle drivers have only 5%. 
Also, many equestrian rights of way are now disconnected from each other because the roads 
that should connect them are no longer safe for equestrian use because of the speed, size and 
volume of motorised traffic on them. Many equestrians have no access to a safe local route. 
There is much therefore that needs to be done to provide parity of access for the growing 
number of equestrians. 
 
The Society fully appreciates all councils are experiencing unprecedented cut backs in their 
budgets and that access is generally not a priority.  And it is precisely because such resources  
 
 

 
Patron Her Majesty The Queen 
 
 
 
 
Fulfilling your passion for horses 

 
The British Horse Society 
Abbey Park, 
Stareton, 
Kenilworth, 
Warwickshire CV8 2XZ 

 
Email enquiry@bhs.org.uk 
Website www.bhs.org.uk 
Tel 0844 848 1666 
Tel 01926 707700 
Fax 01926 707800 

 

Agenda Item 5

7



 
 

are so severely limited that when such public funding is available this should achieve maximum 
value and provide access for ALL non-motorised users. If all Councils were to adopt this default 
assumption all users would see measurable gains.  
 
The three different pieces of legislation listed below have increased rights of access to the 
countryside to walkers, without similar provision for equestrians and other users. The Society 
would welcome any new access opportunities that your forum is able to secure to address this 
unfair situation for equestrians, and consequently, to improve access for cyclists as well. 
 
The Society is keen to hear from Local Access Forums that currently do not have an equestrian 
representative, so that we can highlight this fact to our own members to encourage them to apply 
and ensure that relevant local equestrian access issues are passed to their area forum for 
consideration. 
 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 

  
Mark Weston, 
Director of Access, Safety and Welfare, 
The British Horse Society. 
02476 840560 
mobile: 07967973196 
 
 

8



 
 

 
 
Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000:  
 
• The creation of Open Access land has resulted in many landowners and local authorities 

erecting barriers and padlocked gates which, while they provide no impediment to 
walkers, exclude access to riders, even where they had previously enjoyed access rights, 
often enjoyed for centuries. 

• Riders rights over Urban Commons, as provided for under the Law of Property Act 1925, 
are often being denied by the erection of barriers which deny access to equestrians. 

• The maxim “Once a Highway, always a Highway” has stood the test of time since 1169 
but in 2026, all under-recorded and unrecorded rights of way may be extinguished. Some 
landowners, when unwilling to dedicate higher rights over their land are persuaded to do 
so when they see historical documents showing an ancient way.  The dearth of riders after 
the war meant that many bridleways were not properly recorded during the definitive map 
process. Some 50% of footpaths are actually ancient bridleways, and the bridleway rights 
will be extinguished in 2026 if section 53 of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 is 
brought into force. 

• Forestry Commission freehold land has been dedicated for walkers but no such rights 
have been given to riders.  This means that such access as is currently provided for 
equestrians will be lost when any such land is sold. 

Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 
 
• This Act has restricted the creation of off-road routes for motorists. However there are 

many miles of dual status routes – routes which are on the List of Streets as Unclassified 
County Roads (UCRs) but also recorded on the definitive map as either footpaths or 
bridleways. Many local authorities have erected anti motor barriers which are also denying 
access to equestrians. Many of these dual status stretches are short lengths in the middle 
of longer off road routes, thus denying equestrian access on miles of safe off road routes. 
The barriers are also denying access to the less able rider who, as a consequence of 
disability, is unable to negotiate them. 

Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009  
 
• The foreshore is now designated as Open Access Land, which has a restriction against 

horses. The government refused to acknowledge equestrian common law rights to the 
foreshore, stating that any existing rights will be protected but in practice there is nothing 
in writing to protect riders’ rights. There should be a presumption that any foreshore which 
is accessed via a road or bridleway has equestrian rights. 

• The coastal strip is only for walkers. No acknowledgement is being made of under or 
unrecorded equestrian rights, that coincide with the route. 

 
 
 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



Letter from Natural England regarding Defra funding 

Defra has today announced our grant-in-aid settlement for 2011-14, which I 
am pleased to say, represents a good outcome for us in the context of the 
current spending climate. The settlement is in line with the planning 
assumptions which have underpinned our efficiency programme and new 
business model. 
 
In broad terms, the settlement involves a £44.2m reduction in our grant-in-aid 
over the next four years. This represents a 21.5% cut in our overall budget 
and a 31.8% cut in the portion of the budget which we directly manage (the 
other portion of our budget being accounted for by recharges from Defra for 
the use of their services).  
 
The settlement is accompanied by the very welcome news that Defra will fund 
a substantial portion of the redundancy costs associated with the introduction 
of our new business model.  Until now, our understanding was that we would 
have had to meet all our redundancy costs from our GIA budget, which would 
have significantly impacted our activity spend.   
 
At a time of very significant constraints on public spending, this settlement 
reflects the importance that Defra attaches to the work we do for the natural 
environment and to the confidence that they have in our new business model 
and our capacity to deliver against it. 
 
We can now continue the job of prioritising programme spend for 2011-12, 
and identify how we can achieve savings that will minimise the impact on our 
core programme work.   
 
As many of you know already, we will, for example, be: 
 
� Making savings in back office processes, establishing casework hubs 

for land management planning, process re-engineering of wildlife 
licensing, and centralised grants management activities?? 

 
� Prioritising statutory access and stopping or reducing non-priority public 

engagement programmes?? 
 
� Developing a refreshed biodiversity conservation programme with 

partners which maintains our core delivery responsibilities and 
maximises the contribution from agri-environment schemes and other 
external funding sources.  We will deliver further efficiencies by 
combining Countdown 2010 and Wetland Vision to create a new 
biodiversity grant scheme?? 

 
� Working more closely with Defra and other bodies in the Defra network 

on evidence and monitoring? 
 
In addition to these efficiencies, we will work with partners to transfer to civil 
society areas of work (such as NNRs and Walking for Health) which meets 
Government priorities and where partners are better placed to lead.  
 

11



Letter from Natural England regarding Defra funding 

We will continue to keep you up to date with developments and will be able to 
let you know the detailed impact of the cuts on the funding available for 
partnership working as this becomes clearer during the refresh of our 
Strategic Direction and the development of our new Corporate Plan over the 
next few months.  
 
In February, we will start to assign staff to their roles in our new structure and 
we will then write to you to confito work closely with you in taking forward the 
relationship between our two organisations. 
 
In the meantime, can I thank you for your support and reassure you that we’re 
committed to building on the strengths of the relationship that Natural England 
has with your organisation and to ensuring that our new arrangements will be 
fully aligned to the needs of our customers and partners locally. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Ciaran Gannon 
 
Regional Director 
 
 

12


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Last Meeting and Matters Arising
	5 National and Regional LCAF Work
	5b - Letter from Natural England re Defra funding


